
 

General Business                                       Lower Saucon Township                                        May 18, 2022 

& Developer                                                     Council Agenda                                                        6:30 p.m. 
 

 

I. OPENING 

 A. Call to Order 

 B. Roll Call 

 C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 D. Announcement of Executive Session (if applicable) 

 E. Public Comment Procedure 

   

II. PUBLIC COMMENT – AGENDA ITEMS ONLY – RESIDENTS/TAXPAYERS ONLY – 3-MINUTE TIME 

LIMIT 

 

III. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. Resolutions Recognizing Jr. Council Members 

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS - None 

 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

 A. Resolution #52-2022 Emergency Operations Plan 

 B. Discussion of Roadway Improvement Projects 

 C. Resolution #53-2022 Honoring Sal Ghazi 

 *D. Discussion of Library Services 

 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. Approval of April 20, 2022 Council Minutes 

B. Approval of April 2022 Financial Reports 

    

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS   

 A. Township Manager 

 B. Council/Jr. Council Member 

 C. Solicitor 

 D. Engineer 

 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – RESIDENTS/TAXPAYERS ONLY – 3-MINUTE 

TIME LIMIT 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Saucon Rail Trail Oversight Commission: June 27, 2022 

Zoning Hearing Board: May 23, 2022 

Planning Commission: May 26, 2022 

Parks & Recreation: June 6, 2022 

Township Council: June 15, 2022 

Environmental Advisory Council: June 14, 2022 

 

www.lowersaucontownship.org 

 

*REVISED AGENDA 



General Business                                             Lower Saucon Township                                          May 18, 2022 

& Developer                                                          Council Minutes                                                       6:30 P.M. 
 

 
I. OPENING 

CALL TO ORDER:  The General Business & Developer meeting of Lower Saucon Township Council was 

called to order on Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. with Mr. Jason Banonis, presiding. 

ROLL CALL:  Present:  Jason Banonis, President; Priscilla deLeon, Sandra Yerger and Thomas Carocci, 

Council Members; Peter Marshall, Interim Township Manager; Linc Treadwell, Township Solicitor; Brien 

Kocher, Township Engineer; Cathy Gorman, Director of Finance; Carol Schneider and Stacy Werkheiser, 

Administrative Assistants.  Absent:  Jennifer Zavacky, Vice President. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANY EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF APPLICABLE) – Mr. Banonis said that 

Council did meet in executive session this evening to discuss personnel issues and land acquisition in order 

for an appraisal for Property No. 2022-2.  

MOTION BY: Mr. Banonis moved to amend the agenda to move up Resolution #53-2022 honoring Sal Ghazi 

and resolutions recognizing Jr. Council members. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Carocci 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

II. PRESENTATIONS/HEARINGS 

A. RESOLUTION #53-2022 – HONORING SAL GHAZI 

 Mr. Banonis said Resolution #53-2022 was prepared honoring Sal Ghazi for his dedication to the 

community and we are privileged to have his wife Debbie here this evening.  He read Resolution 

#53-2022 (See attached resolution). 

MOTION BY: Ms. deLeon moved for approval of Resolution #53-2022 honoring Sal Ghazi. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Carocci 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 Mr. Carocci said as a liaison to the Fire Services, he didn’t know Sal well but he was always 

supportive of what Council did regarding Fire Services in the Township.  He thanked Mrs. Ghazi 

for her husband’s service.  Mr. Banonis presented Mrs. Ghazi with the resolution.  

 

 Mr. Scott Krycia said he wanted to thank Council for taking their time to recognize such an 

important person from our fire department and an important person from our community.  Ms. 

deLeon said he’s been here a long time and he will be looking down watching what you are doing.   

 

B. RESOLUTIONS RECOGNIZING JR. COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Mr. Banonis said Resolution #46-2022 through #51-2022 have been prepared recognizing the 

following Jr. Council members who served the 2021-2022 school year:  Township Council – Avia 

Weber and Kennedy Pacchioli; EAC – Bela Silverman; Parks & Recreation Board – Mason Simms 

and Colin Griffith; Planning Commission – Kyla Ferguson.  He thanked them for their service to 

the Township.  He read the Resolution for all the Jr. Council members.  (See attached resolution) 

Bela and Colin were present and he personally thanked them for what they have done.  

  

MOTION BY: Ms. deLeon moved for approval of Resolutions #46-2022 through #51-2022 recognizing Jr. 

Council Members for the 2021-2022 school year. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Banonis 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 Ms. deLeon said this is a program she started with Borough Manager Tony Branco.  He had talked 

to her years ago about the program for Jr. Council members and she spoke to the Saucon Valley 

Partnership (SVP) about it and then the Township started this program.  She said this is a great 

program.   

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT – TOWNSHIP RESIDENTS ONLY – 3 MINUTE TIME LIMIT – AGENDA 

ITEMS ONLY 

 Mr. Banonis said the Public Comment procedure is available on the table.  We have a three-minute comment 

period.  If anyone would like to speak on any agenda items, please come forward and identify yourself. 



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 2 of 7 

➢ Jill Kozo, 1391 Nace Avenue, said she has a 10-year old daughter who reads constantly and 

encourages everyone to support the Hellertown Area Library (HAL).  

➢ Victoria Opthof-Cordaro, 1682 Woodfield Drive, said she is thankful that Council placed the 

Hellertown Area Library (HAL) on the agenda this evening.  She hopes Council will take due 

diligence this evening and hopes that the HAL will be fully funded to the extent that you had budgeted 

for last year.  The HAL needs this money to project forward, and she is hopeful we can have the 

library.   

➢ Laura Ray, 3357 Lower Saucon Road, said on the April 19th Southern Lehigh Library agenda they 

had discussions regarding a meeting on March 29th between Lower Saucon Township (LST) and 

Upper Saucon Township (UST).  At the April Council meeting there was nothing mentioned about 

what was discussed.  It would be nice to know what was discussed.  This wasn’t the first time they 

don’t know what’s going on.  Where’s the transparency?  We have heard that word a lot.  Regarding 

any decisions to be made tonight, it’s clear what your constituents want but she doesn’t expect that’s 

what we’ll be hearing tonight.  She had emailed the Township about having a Town Hall Forum so 

that more people could speak as our code seems to lack for this, but that idea was single handedly 

shut down for no reason.   

➢ Alan Cunningham, 1671 Cambridge Court, thanked Council and said he appreciates what they do 

for the community as it’s a thankless job.  He’s glad to see HAL on the agenda tonight and is looking 

forward to hear from Council.  The library is an integral part of the community and provides the 

services for families with children and computer systems to the elderly. 

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS – None  

 

V. TOWNSHIP BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. RESOLUTION #52-2022 – UPDATE TO THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN 

 Mr. Marshall said the PA Emergency Service Code mandates that the Township maintain an 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP).  Resolution #52-2022 has been prepared to adopt the EOP, as 

revised.  He read the resolution.  (See attached resolution). 

 

 Ms. deLeon said in the packet it says Council is approving it and she hasn’t seen it.  Attorney 

Treadwell said it was written by our Emergency Management Coordinator (EMC) and his 

understanding is that it never has been distributed to Council as there are things in it that are 

confidential in terms of emergency operations.  Ms. deLeon said there are changes and certain 

information that is updated and we have to use this document and if it has Council from five years 

ago that isn’t going to help.  She doesn’t want to adopt something she hasn’t seen unless someone 

tells her those changes have been made.  Attorney Treadwell said the EMC couldn’t make it tonight 

so we could make the motion subject to Peter confirming that the information is correct.  Ms. deLeon 

said it’s been a long time since we have done this and she’d rather do that. 

MOTION BY: Mr. Banonis moved for approval to adopt Resolution #52-2022, the updated Emergency 

Operations Plan for Lower Saucon Township subject to the Township Manager coordinating 

with the EMC official to confirm that the information in the Operations Plan is current and 

accurate. 

SECOND BY: Ms. deLeon 

 Ms. deLeon said this should be in a tickler file for two years from now and it should have been in 

the tickler file two years ago and it wasn’t.  Mr. Banonis said he remembers doing this two years 

ago. Mr. Carocci said maybe they can come in the June meeting and give an update. 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

B. DISCUSSION OF ROADWAY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 Mr. Marshall said the Township Engineer and Director of Public Works have viewed and inspected 

the roads in the Saucon Terrace Subdivision and Council may wish to consider authorizing the 

Township Engineer to prepare a bid package for repaving of those roadways.  

 

 Mr. Kocher said they looked at every road to see how the paving conditions were and they identified 

some things that needed to be done on the roadways.  They identified the storm sewer that is in the 



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 3 of 7 

eastern part of that development which is the original storm sewer and has to be replaced.  Mr. 

Carocci said he supports this project and we should get a bid out there and see how much it is.  There 

hasn’t been an overhaul since 1970.  He also noticed the roads in Steel City are in need of 

improvements and Mr. Rasich agreed, but thought these were of a higher priority.   

 

Ms. deLeon said does Roger have a priority list of all the streets?  Mr. Carocci said he does.  While 

there are individual streets in the Township worse than some of these streets, they aren’t all in one 

area.   

MOTION BY: Mr. Carocci moved to authorize the Township Engineer Brien Kocher and Director of Public 

Works Roger Rasich to prepare a bid packet, publicize it and start the bid process for repaving 

the roads in the Saucon Valley Terrace Subdivision. 

SECOND BY: Ms. deLeon 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

  

D. DISCUSSION ON LIBRARY SERVICES 

 Mr. Banonis said he reported at the last Council meeting that he met with representatives of the 

Borough of Hellertown, HAL, and Pastor Phil Spohn, for the purposes of discussing library services 

with HAL.  He had read a statement at our last meeting that was drafted in coordination with 

representatives of all those groups.  They left that meeting with the understanding they would 

continue the dialogue and they would respond to LST if they were interested in the proposal for 

regionalization.  We did receive a proposal from HAL that they suggested we pay the amount of 

$107,000 that would guarantee library access through December 31, 2022 and thereafter, HAL 

would cease to service and would not identify LST as a direct service area after December 31, 2022.  

Since then we also received letters from HAL expressing their lack of interest in the regionalization 

proposal as well as a letter from Hellertown Borough to the same effect, again, that they have a lack 

of interest in the regionalization idea.   

MOTION BY: Mr. Banonis moved to direct our Solicitor to issue a letter to the HAL, directing the library to 

not include LST’s population in its application to the Office of Commonwealth of Libraries 

(OCL) for State Funding for calendar year 2023 and also issue a letter to the OCL advising it 

that it should not include LST’s population in its calculations for the formulation of State 

Funding for 2023.  He’s also included in that, an agreement that LST will allocate to the HAL 

$32,000 which equals the amount that HAL would receive by 2023 based upon the inclusion if 

it was to include LST’s population in its State Aid application. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Carocci 

 Ms. deLeon asked where they are getting the $32,000 from?  Mr. Banonis said it is the amount that 

they would receive using LSTs population.  Ms. deLeon said what are your plans to provide library 

services?  She’d like to know what you are discussing as a council member.  Mr. Banonis said 

discussions are ongoing.  You can discuss whatever you want with whoever you want.  He doesn’t 

answer to her, he answers to the Township.  Mr. Carocci said the residents have library services in 

the HAL until December 31, 2022, and we will work on alternate option for 2023.  Attorney 

Treadwell had one clarification, the $32,000 is in addition to the $50,000 that was already offered.  

Mr. Banonis said correct.  Attorney Treadwell said he just wanted to clarify that if he is going to 

write the letter.  Ms. deLeon said how do you look at the residents and give them a date when they 

can’t go to the library?  Mr. Banonis said according what the library proposed to us, they proposed 

December 31, 2022.  They specifically requested that.  Mr. Carocci said they didn’t specifically 

request in the proposal that you read twice before Council, to let them know by June or July whether 

they were going to count us in the population for 2023 so they can get their application in.  The 

motion is to instruct the letter to say no, don’t count us in for 2023.  Their proposal also said that 

they would provide library services until December 31, 2022.  Mr. Banonis said we are also 

allocating $32,000 so they are not short of what they would have received in 2023.  Mr. Carocci 

said correct, they don’t have to put on the application and they are still going to get $32,000.  Ms. 

Yerger said in addition the $50,000 to make that clear so they are getting $83,000 for 2022.  Ms. 

Yerger wanted to make sure that everybody understands.  Ms. deLeon said she looks at this as a 

disadvantage because if this was a Developer Item, there would be people sitting at the table and 

they would be discussing it back and forth and we don’t have that option.  Mr. Banonis it is on the 



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 4 of 7 

agenda, and they chose not to be here.  Mr. Carocci said there were four public comments.  Someone 

from the audience said they have a comment please.  Ms. deLeon said yes, that was for agenda 

items, but they weren’t participants in the agenda item.  Mr. Banonis said the agenda specifically 

identifies the Discussion of Library Services.  Ms. deLeon said she understands that.  Mr. Carocci 

confirmed who spoke, and Mr. Banonis said they have already stated their position on these issues.  

Ms. deLeon said when developers are here, they have all the paperwork, but they are still here to 

present all of their facts.  Mr. Carocci said HAL is not a developer.  Mr. Banonis said he is looking 

at his packet and on May 12, 2022, the Hellertown Borough Council sent a letter to us via email – 

you have that.  On April 29, 2022, HAL sent a letter to us and you have that and they stated their 

position and it may not be what you like.  Mr. Carocci said we are actually giving them what they 

asked for.  They asked to let them know by June or July whether they wanted us counted in their 

State Grant and we are getting a letter to them and giving them exactly what they want.  We are 

giving them more, $32,000 on top of the $50,000.  Mr. Carocci said discussions are ongoing.  Ms. 

deLeon said  

ROLL CALL: 3-1 (Ms. deLeon – No; Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

VI. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF April 20, 2022, 2022 COUNCIL MINUTES 

Mr. Banonis said the April 20, 2022 Council minutes are ready for Council’s review and approval.   

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of the April 20, 2022 Council minutes. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Banonis 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

B. APPROVAL OF APRIL 2022 FINANCIAL REPORTS 

Mr. Banonis said the April 2022 Financial Reports are ready for Council’s review and approval. 

MOTION BY: Mrs. Yerger moved for approval of the April 2022 Financial Reports. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Banonis 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

VII. COUNCIL & STAFF REPORTS 

A. INTERIM TOWNSHIP MANAGER  

➢ Mr. Marshall thanked the Administrative Staff, Stacy Werkheiser and Carol Schneider who 

provided a great lunch to celebrate Public Works Day and Police Week. 

➢ We will be getting an intern this summer to help us take the necessary steps as far as records 

management practices to conform with state regulations. 

➢ He received a letter from Council Member Jennifer Zavacky that she resigned because of a 

new career change in 2022.   

MOTION BY: Mr. Banonis moved to put the acceptance of Jennifer Zavacky’s resignation on the June 2022 

Council meeting agenda and to direct the Township Manager to gather potential resumes for 

applicants interested in filling the vacancy. 

 Attorney Treadwell said it is 45 days to accept the resignation and 30 days to appoint a new 

councilperson.   

SECOND BY: Mr. Carocci  

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

B. COUNCIL/JR. COUNCIL 

Jr. Council – Absent 

Mrs. Zavacky - Absent 

Mrs. Yerger – No report 

Mr. Carocci  

➢ The Interim Township Manager conducted some interviews for Township Manager. 

➢ Fire Services – merger agreements have been drafted and they are waiting to be voted on by 

Steel City and Lower Saucon Fire Rescue (LSFR) and they have to go through the formal 

process of voting and be one entity of LSFR for the entire Township.  



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 5 of 7 

➢ He went to the PSAT’s conference and attended several seminars such as Zoning and 

Planning Regulations, Township Manager Seminar as he wanted to hear what Township 

Managers had to say about hiring committee. 

➢ He was invited to Scott Roberts class at the high school “Contemporary World Issues”, one 

of the issues was the library.  The kids asked questions and there was good dialogue back 

and forth.  He said it was his understanding that they were going to invite someone in from 

Hellertown as well, and hopefully that happened.  He wanted to thank the class and Scott 

Roberts for inviting him in to speak. 

Ms. deLeon 

➢ She’d like to follow-up on the landfill.  Lehigh Valley Planning Commission received a 

permit renewal application and asked if the Township had any comments to respond by May 

23rd.  She read a letter from DEP dated April 18th (See attached letter).  Mr. Banonis said he 

has no comments. Ms. deLeon asked when the last landfill meeting took place, and Mr. 

Banonis said April 21st. Mr. Carocci said it is okay, there are no issues.  Ms. Yerger asked 

for clarification on the inspection date. 

➢ Hellertown Lower Saucon Chamber – She attended the planning meeting last night and they 

have lots of stuff planned.  Unfortunately, they will be unable to do Movies in the Park this 

year.  Sunday, May 22nd, Steel Creek Band will be at Dimmick Park; The Weekenders on 

June 26th, July 17th and The Little Red Rooster on August 21st there will be more summer 

concerts.  June 4th Dine-in Dimmick Park; they had a fundraiser for the unfortunate family 

that lost their two family members and they are going to use that money to put in park 

benches in Dimmick Park for the Kaufman sisters.  She didn’t know this but when the 

Chamber sends emails to the Township, she needs to get copies of them.  Mr. Banonis said 

why don’t you ask them to send you copies.  Ms. deLeon said she is the liaison.  She asked 

Cathy Gorman if she did a grant application for Main Street Lehigh Valley Grant?  We 

should have a list for things we’d like to apply for these grants.  Mrs. Gorman said she’s not 

sure if she did as there wasn’t anything specific they had.  Ms. deLeon said it’s due at the 

end of the month.  Mrs. Gorman said the only thing she thought would be applicable would 

be Christmas decorations.  Ms. deLeon said we could get it.   

➢ She said she is still waiting for the Manager’s ad.  

➢ She attended the PSAT’s conference in April.  She was the voting delegate and attended 

workshops, one in particular was Fire Services.  She will give the material to Peter to 

circulate regarding Recruiting and Retaining Volunteer Fire EMS Personnel.  

➢ One of our residents mentioned that according to our Administrative Code, under meetings 

of Council, No. 3, “on a regular basis, time should be provided for a Citizen’s Forum for 

Town meetings to be held at the beginning of the regularly scheduled Council meetings.  

Such meeting shall be limited to 30-minute duration.  Additional time may be designated at 

the discretion of Council”.  This is something that it’s not an option, it’s a “shall”.  We need 

to do this on a regular basis, and she does not recall when they had one last.  We need to plan 

one and come back at the next meeting and put this on the agenda and this is something that 

is law and talk about when would be a good time to do this.   

MOTION BY: Ms. deLeon moved to follow our Administrative Code and put this on the agenda at the June 

meeting and come up with a date that is acceptable to us. 

 Mr. Banonis said you are making a motion to put this on the agenda in June a discussion about 

having this Town Hall Forum on some date to be determined.  Ms. deLeon said it’s not a 

discussion - it’s coming up with a date to have it.  Mr. Banonis said not that you are proposing to 

have it occur in June, you are proposing a discussion and then setting a date for it to occur.  Ms. 

deLeon said right.   

SECOND BY: Mr. Banonis 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

➢ Last meeting, she talked about having the Zoning Officer get back to her as there was a 

gentleman that had an issue with a property on 378 and she has not heard from the Zoning 

Officer and there are other properties she listed.  She would like to hear back from him with 

an update on a couple of these properties, i.e., Route 378 by the paint store, Fieldstone Drive, 

Alice Drive, and 2168 Riverside Drive.  



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 6 of 7 

➢ She asked about scholarships, she talked to Jessica about this.  Carol said the scholarships 

were forwarded, but they lost them and she resent them. 

Mr. Banonis 

➢ There was a Landfill Committee meeting last month.  Operations looked good. They 

continue to keep us apprised with information.  No issues have popped up.   

➢ In light of Jen’s notification, we should assign a liaison to the Parks & Recreation Board and 

Library Services.  He was previously liaison to Parks & Recreation so he will be happy to 

take that one again.  Mr. Carocci said he will take the library liaison position.  Ms. deLeon 

said is the resignation effective tonight?  Attorney Treadwell said it’s not effective until we 

accept it.  We have 45 days from submission to accept, then 30 days from acceptance to 

appointment.   

➢ He also added and wanted to follow-up with something Ms. deLeon brought on up with Tom. 

Mr. Banonis asked Peter in his conversations with Astor Lawson from the landfill, can you 

follow up with him and on the day of the when Priscilla read that report. There shortages in 

cover material, and there are all sorts of shortages such as baby formula, diagnostic dyes, 

gasoline, diesel, and all kinds of things. Mr. Banonis wants to be sure that trash isn’t being 

deposited on corners all summer long in the heat.   

C. SOLICITOR – No report 

D. ENGINEER – No report 

 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT - NON-AGENDA ITEMS – RESIDENTS/TAXPAYERS ONLY – 3-MINUTE 

TIME LIMIT 

• JoEllen Thompson, 1819 Viola Lane, said she wanted to clarify that the State Library Grant ran on 

the fiscal year which is June 30th and from what you were presenting it seemed like December 31st.  

Attorney Treadwell said that issue has been an item of discussion he had with the attorney who 

represents HAL.  He also tried to get some clarification from the OCL and we don’t have that 

clarification. The way he has looked at it and the way he interpreted it is that the money that the State 

Aid distributes to libraries is usually at the beginning of the calendar year and is for the entire calendar 

year.  The money comes in January-February and covers the calendar year it is received.  Mr. Banonis 

said the applications are not due prior to the fiscal year.  Attorney Treadwell said they are due in 

October.  It’s confusing as the State operates on a fiscal year but distributes aid to libraries on a 

calendar year.  Ms. Thompson said because of that LST residents would be entitled to still use the 

HAL.  Attorney Treadwell said he doesn’t think there’s a 100% black and white clear answer.  

Ultimately, the HAL decides who comes in and who doesn’t.  Ms. Thompson said in the past you 

directed our Solicitor to take action with any LST residents who were denied access to the library.  

Mr. Banonis said to his knowledge, there are no LST residents that have been denied to the library.  

Our funding level for HAL is what is required by the State.  It is not our intention to sue anyone, and 

he doesn’t think we are going to have to do that.   

• Laura Ray, 3357 Lower Saucon Road, said she was hoping to hear more of an update on the search 

for the Manager, we had four candidates?  Mr. Carocci said it’s a personnel issue and we have 

updated you.  It’s all going according to schedule, the job is posted and there were interviews.  Ms. 

Ray hopes it’s not going to be a year.  Mr. Carocci said Leslie left, Peter is the Interim Manager and 

he’s getting to know the Township a little bit and to understand the type of personality for the person 

to be hired.   

• Barrett Geyer, 2214 Green Pine Lane, said he ran into several of you last week and he felt compelled 

to share some of that tonight.  He stated facts about the Dow Jones, gasoline prices, residential 

heating oil, inflation, 401K fund providers.  He’s in support of a donation to the library as he thinks 

a tax increase is coming.  70% of the school district’s budget is out of control.  Everyone is going to 

get hit with a tax increase at the worst possible economic time.  He appreciates the shift from a 

contractual agreement with the library to a donation amount.   

• Sue Lucrezi, 1984 WestPoint Drive, said she asked to see the posting of the job description of the 

Township Manager, and she didn’t see it.  She was promised at one of these meetings that the criteria 

for understanding of AV would be on there and she hasn’t seen it.  We can’t have Zoom or broadcast 



General Business & Developer Meeting  

May 18, 2022  
 

Page 7 of 7 

until we get the Manager’s approval for the system.  As far as the library situation, she has no more 

words, you are shameless.   

• Robin Socha said during this whole thing about the library, she has not heard one time a reason for 

not funding the library.  Mr. Banonis said at the January 19th meeting, look at the minutes which are 

on-line.  Ms. Socha said the funds are there.  She told you about her grandson with a speech disorder 

and he is speaking now thanks to the library.  He will be going to school in September because of 

HAL and the services they provide.   

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION BY: Mr. Carocci moved for adjournment.  The time was 7:47 p.m. 

SECOND BY:  Mr. Banonis 

ROLL CALL: 4-0 (Mrs. Zavacky – Absent) 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

________________________________    __________________________________ 

Peter Marshall       Jason Banonis      

Interim Township Manager     Council President 





 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOWER SAUCON TOWNSHIP 
 

RESOLUTION #46-2022 thru #51-2022 
 
 

PROCLAMATIONS RECOGNIZING JUNIOR COUNCIL MEMBERS 
  

 
 
WHEREAS, the Lower Saucon Township Council appointed Avia Weber and Kennedy Pacchioli to serve as the 
Junior Council members on Council; Bela Silverman on the Environmental Advisory Council; Kylah Ferguson on 
the Planning Commission; and, Mason Simms and Colin Griffith on the Parks & Recreation Board. 

 
WHEREAS, all the Jr. Council members participated in the meetings during the 2021/2022 school year and 
provided input from a student’s point of view; and 

 
WHEREAS, all the Jr. Council members have done a great job and brought with them the eagerness of learning 
more about local government in their community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of Lower Saucon Township, Jason Banonis, President; Jennifer Zavacky, Vice 
President; Priscilla deLeon, Thomas Carocci, Sandra Yerger, Council Members; do hereby commend Avia, 
Kennedy, Bela, Kylah, Mason and Colin for their exemplary performance on behalf of Lower Saucon Township 
and Saucon Valley High School and Notre Dame High School. 
 
Resolved this 18th day of May, 2022. 
 

   






































